



Part 2 SPECIFICATION

Request for Tender (RFT):	Supply of 3 x Single Person Long term Accommodation Cabin
Closing Time:	4.00 pm Friday 16 th August 2024
RFT Number:	T2024-2025-104

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	Introduction2
2.	Background Information2
3.	Type of Contract2
4.	Particulars of Services3
5.	Scope of Works
5.1	Design3
5.2	Preliminaries6
5.3	Site Preparation6
5.4	Provision for Traffic7
5.5	Building Construction7
5.6	Services7
5.7	External Works and Landscape7
5.8	As-constructed Documentation7
5.9	Project Management7
6.	Works Standard8
7.	Pricing Schedule8
8.	Legislation8
9.	Contractor as Principal Contractor9
10.	Proposed Works Program9
11.	Working Hours9
12.	Possession of Site and Commencement of Work10
13.	Practical Completion10
14.	Date for Practical Completion10
15.	Extension of Time for Practical Completion10
16.	Defects Liability Period11
17.	Retention Monies12
18.	Performance Bonds12
19.	Acceptance of Work12
20.	Public Consultation
21.	Damage by Contractor
22.	Timetable for Procurement13

1. Introduction

Bulloo Shire Council invites tenders from suitably qualified contractors and builders for the design and construction of three (3) single person long term accommodation cabins. The project includes delivery and installation at Thargomindah, Bulloo Shire.

The primary objectives of the Principal in inviting Tenders are;

- to obtain value for money;
- to ensure open and effective competition;
- to ensure timely and efficient supply delivery.

Full details of this Request for Tender are contained in the suite of documents encompassing Parts 1 to 5.

2. Background Information

The intent of this Request for Tender is to provide the Principal with access to suitably qualified Contractors and builders to desgin and construct 3 x Single Person Long Term Accommodation Cabins at Thargomindah at the Yapunyah Caravan Park on Lot 505 SP134021.

The town of Thargomindah is the administrative centre of Bulloo Shire in Southwest Queensland. Along with the development of the Shire, housing has become a constraint for both Council employees and the Community. The project will provide accommodation for Single persons within the Bulloo Shire.

All information provided or specified to the Tenderers may be subject to change. However, all effort has been made to provide indicative quantities. Variables affecting quantities include, but are not limited to, material quantity, material quality, project location, third party interest and budget. This information is supplied in good faith and without prejudice.

3. Type of Contract

This Request for Tender is a **Design and Construction** Contract. All fees and charges necessary for the successful completion of the proposed works shall be deemed to be included in the prices and rates as detailed in Part 3B – Tender Submission Form - Pricing Schedule.

4. Design and Construction Schedule

The following schedule and relevant payment percentages for the Progressive Drawdowns Design and Construction are as follows:

Schedule	Payment Percentage
Foundations/Slab – laying the foundation, levelling the ground, plumbing, and waterproofing the foundation	20%
Frame – building the frames, roofing, trusses, and windows	20%
Lockup – external walls, lockable windows, and doors	20%
Fit Out – gutters, plumbing, electricity, plasterboards, and installation of cupboards/appliances	20%

Practical Completion

5. Particulars of Services

The project is to undertake a Design and Construction of Three (3) x One-bedroom Single Person Long Term Accommodation Cabin.

The Principal has previously utilised modular homes (off-site construction) as a solution for shortening construction phase time, however this can also include the utilisation of pre-fabricated kit cabins to then build on-site. Construction of more traditional on-site cabins development will also be considered, if the value for money and timeframe are demonstrated to meet project requirements.

The successful Contractor should have all the necessary documentation as detailed in Part 3A - Tender Submission Form, and be able to supply all the necessary labour, plant and materials to successfully undertake the works as specified.

6. Scope of Works

A summary of the scope of works is as follows. The scope summary should be read in conjunction with Part 3B – Tender Submission Form - Pricing Schedule and **Design and Construction Schedule**. As is the nature of a D&C contract, the specific scope of works will vary from Tenderers' design proposals. Tenderers should specify all assumptions, exclusions and optional extras in terms of scope of works and pricing. **All works are deemed to be included unless otherwise specified by the Principal or the Tenderer**.

7. Design

A summary of project requirements is as below. A project concept design has been attached as a reference and starting point for Tenderer design. Tenderers are expected to provide a similar design but not bound to the concept to allow Tenderers to work on the following areas:

Buildability – identifying any challenges that may arise during construction or transportation, and working with the design team to find solutions to avoid or overcome them;

Value Engineering – identifying potential changes to the design where savings may be possible.

Inclusions:

- 1) Accommodation/ Cabin fully detailed Construction design (all disciplines), including carport; and
- 2) Energy Efficiency Assessment.

Exclusions:

- 1) Landscaping; and
- 2) Services beyond buildings' footprint; and
- 3) Civil Design (Site Plan, driveway pavement details, carport and car park pavement details, vehicle Swept Path analysis); and
- 4) Hydraulic Design from services connection point or discharge point to each house (Site Hydraulic Service Plan, Stormwater Drainage, Sanitary Drainage and Water Reticulation); and

5) Electrical Design from Ergon connection point to each house.

3x Single Person Long Term Accommodation/ Cabin				
SECTION	DETAIL			
Units	 1 bedroom Air conditioning throughout sufficient to most people or g 			
	 Air conditioning throughout sufficient to meet needs e.g. kitchen/dining and bedroom 			
	Deck area			
	Neutral colours internal			
	External lighting over stairs			
	Lighting on patio			
	Roof Insulation			
	Insulation to be placed in ceiling and walls			
	Electrical hot water system			
	External water tap for cleaner			
	 Interconnected photoelectric smoke alarms (Australian Standard (AS) 3786-2014) to be fitted in all bedrooms, in hallways where bedrooms are connected, and on each and every level of the residence 			
Bathroom	• Shower			
	Easy clean tiles in shower			
	Handheld showerhead			
	• Soap holder			
	• Vanity			
	• Mirror			
	Double towel rail			
	• Toilet			
	Roller Holder			
	Economical cistern			
	Combination heater lamp and lighting			
	• Exhaust fan			
	Window ventilation			
	 All taps to be left and right hands (for disabilities) 			
	Non-slip floor tiles flooring			

	•	GPO
Kitchen/Dining/	•	Oven
Lounge	•	Benchtop stove
	•	Exhaust fan over stove
	•	Space for fridge
	•	Sink with strainer
	•	Under-sink cupboard for cleaners etc
	•	Draws & Cupboard space for pots/pans etc.
	•	Overhead cupboard space
	•	Preparation bench
	•	Double powerpoints – in addition to where fridge plugs
	•	Space for small dinning table
	•	TV and data points
	•	Room for TV or base to put TV on wall
	•	Room for 2 seat sofa
	•	Room for small occasional table
	•	Air conditioning
	•	Lighting (white) - LED lights
	•	Window
	•	Interconnected Smoke Alarm (Australian Standard (AS)3786-2014)
	•	Vinyl plank floor covering
Laundry	•	Space for washing machine & dryer
Bedroom 1	•	Large enough to suit queen size bed
	•	Clothes storage – including draws and hanging space
	•	Room for bedside tables on both sides of the bed
	•	Double powerpoints each side of the bed
	•	LED lights
	•	Interconnected photoelectric smoke alarms (Australian Standard (AS)3786-2014)
Patio	•	3.5 metres x 1.5 metres
	•	Lighting
	•	External GPO
Outside	•	Change over switch for generator

Outdoor double power point

Tenderers are requested to submit a preliminary design and complete the following table when responding to Part 3A Tender Submission Form, item 3.2 D) Demonstrated Understanding.

Drawing title	Drawing Reference	Revision

*Please attach additional information if space provided is not sufficient.

Tenderes are encourages to submit two options for size,

• 10m x 3.5m unit; and

•

• 12m x 3.5m unit

8. Preliminaries

Inclusions:

- 1) Building and plumbing applications, including all fees and charges; and
- 2) Q-Leave Levy; and
- 3) Insurance and levies; and
- 4) Ergon connection application and fees; and
- 5) Building survey and set out; and
- 6) Cleaning (progressive and final), rubbish removal; and
- Site establishment, Contractor's facilities, accommodation, temporary works, temporary electric light and power supply, traffic management, Contractor's overhead, etc.

Exclusions:

- 1) Soil Test and Site Classification report; and
- 2) Development Application; and
- 3) Rubbish tip fees.

9. Site Preparation

The Principal is responsible for site cleaning, replacing/fill and compaction of subgrade as per the site plan and hand over to the Contractor. Acceptance of the site means the Contractor is satisfied with the site conditions.

10. Provision for Traffic

The Contractor is responsible for the supply and implementation of traffic management and traffic control devices and personnel to control the traffic safely through or around the worksite so that work operation on the site can be safely completed.

11. Building Construction

House: complete construction as per house design including services within the houses' building footprint ready for external services connection.

Carports: complete construction as per design including services within the carports' building footprint ready for external services connection.

12. Services

Inclusions:

- 1) All Internal services within units, carports;
- 2) External services within building footprint ready for connection.

Exclusions:

1) All services outside building footprint.

13. External Works and Landscape

Exclusions:

- 1) Sewerage service connection from building footprint to the network; and
- 2) Stormwater Service connection from building footprint to the network; and
- 3) Water supply connection from building footprint to the network; and
- 4) Electrical connection from the unit switchboard to the network; and
- 5) Driveway; and
- 6) Landscaping.

14. As-constructed Documentation

The Contractor is responsible for providing as-constructed drawings and other documentation in relation to quality assurance, building certification and other general requirements upon completion of the project.

15. Project Management

The Contractor is required to take all managerial measures as practical to ensure successful project delivery and to submit documentation to demonstrate its understanding, experience and capability in this Request for Tender. All costs in

7

relation to project management are deemed to be included in the rates to be submitted in Part 3B – Tender Submission Form - Pricing Schedule.

The Contractor is required to appoint a qualified Project Manager to be the accountable and contact person for this project. The Project Manager will be contacted and responsible for the following processes.

- a) WHS;
- b) Attending pre-start and progress meetings;
- c) Quality Assurance;
- d) Progress payments;
- e) Provide as-constructed documentation; and
- f) Other project management activities.

16. Works Standard

All works must comply with applicable clauses of relevant current Australian Standards or refer to the product manufacturer's specification where no specific Australian Standards exist.

17. Pricing Schedule

A Pricing Schedule is included in Part 3B – Tender Submission Form - Pricing Schedule. All effort has been made to provide a comprehensive breakdown of works, but it is not exhaustive. Tenderers prices are deemed to include all works unless otherwise specified.

18. Legislation

In order to understand relevant work health and safety, environmental and quality requirements for this project, the Contractor must consider, understand and as a minimum be able to comply with the legislation and codes of practice listed following. The list is a guide only and not exhaustive of all required legislation. The Contractor should make themselves aware and familiar with any and all legislative requirements.

- The current edition of the NCC;
- Work Health and Safety Act 2011;
- Work Health and Safety Regulation 2011;
- Electrical Safety Act 2002;
- Electrical Safety Regulation 2013;
- Electrical Safety Code of Practice 2013 Managing electrical risks in the workplace;
- Electrical safety code of practice Working near overhead and underground electric lines;
- Electrical safety code of practice Works;
- How to Manage Work Health and Safety Risks Code of Practice;
- Hazardous Manual Tasks Code of Practice;
- Plant Code of Practice;
- *Environmental Protection Act 1994* and associated regulations:

- i. Environmental Protection Regulation 1998;
- ii. Environmental Protection (Waste Management) Regulation 2000; and
- *Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999.*

19. Contractor as Principal Contractor

The Contractor shall be responsible for the performance of the functions of the Principal Contractor within the meaning of the *Work Health and Safety Act 2011* (WHS Act 2011).

Upon awarding of the Contract:

- a) The Principal shall be deemed to have appointed the Contractor to be the Principal Contractor of the project (WHS Act 2011);
- b) The Contractor shall be deemed to have accepted the appointment;
- c) The Contractor is an independent Contractor and nothing in this Contract will be construed to create any relationship of agency or employment between the parties; and
- d) The Contractor will at no time represent that it is an agent or employee of the Principal.

While the successful Contractor will be the Principal Contractor for the project and be responsible for all necessary documentation and legislation, the Principal will carry out regular inspections to ensure all work and work practices are in accordance with relevant standards and specifications. Should any defects or non-conformances be identified during these inspections an improvement notice will be issued to ensure these are rectified.

20. Proposed Works Program

Tenderers must provide their proposed works program with their Tender for the Principal's consideration. This proposed works program will provide indicative dates of commencement, practical completion, completion of milestones and the sequence the Contractor expects to complete individual jobs. The final works program will be negotiated between the successful Tenderer and Principal and signed off by all parties in the Contract.

If at any time the Superintendent considers that the rate of progress is insufficient to ensure completion of the whole or any portion of the works by the relevant Date for Practical Completion, the Superintendent may direct the Contractor to submit within seven (7) business days, written details of the intended procedure for the execution of the remainder of the work under the Contract.

21. Working Hours

Before commencing work under the Contract, the Contractor shall advise the Principal in writing of the working hours proposed for the execution of the work under the Contract.

- a) No work shall be carried out between Good Friday and Easter Monday inclusive, Public Holiday, or during the Christmas to New Year periods;
- b) No work shall be carried out on the site outside the period between 6 am or sunrise, whichever is later, and 6 pm or sunset, whichever is earlier; unless otherwise specified or approved by the Principal; and

c) Work may be carried out on Saturday or Sunday if approved by the Principal.

22. Possession of Site and Commencement of Work

The Contractor shall not commence work on the site without first advising the Principal's representative. Upon receiving written authorisation to proceed, the Contractor may take possession of the site and commence work.

Any delays in commencement of work caused by this requirement will not be grounds for an extension of time for completion of the works or any part thereof, nor shall it form the basis of any claim for additional payment.

23. Practical Completion

Practical Completion is that stage in the execution of work under the Contract when:

- a) The works are complete except for minor omissions and defects:
 - i. which do not prevent the works from being reasonably capable of being used for their intended purpose; and
 - ii. which the Superintendent determines the Contractor has reasonable grounds for not promptly rectifying; and
- All quality assurance obligations of the Contractor under the Contract have been met; and
- c) All tests required under the Contract to be carried out and passed have been carried out and passed; and
- d) All certificates required under the Contract must have been submitted and accepted by the Superintendent.

Date for Practical Completion means the date on which the Contractor is to achieve Practical Completion taking into account any extensions of time granted to the Contractor.

Date of Practical Completion means the date certified by the Superintendent in a Certificate of Practical Completion to be the date upon which Practical Completion was reached.

If the Contractor or the Principal discover an error in the issued Certificate of Practical Completion, either party may, by notice in writing, require the Superintendent to issue a further Certificate correcting any such error to replace the respective Certificate of Practical Completion.

24. Date for Practical Completion

The Date for Practical Completion is **31 May 2025** unless otherwise approved by Principal.

25. Extension of Time for Practical Completion

When it becomes evident to the Contractor that reaching Practical Completion may be delayed due to circumstances which are beyond their reasonable control, the Contractor shall notify the Superintendent in writing with details of the possible delay and the cause. The Contractor shall apply for an extension of time at every occasion.

The Contractor shall categorise all delays into:

- a) Time lost due to adverse weather conditions defined as time lost due to wet weather, fog, excessively hot, excessively cold and/or dangerously windy conditions and to the effects of these adverse weather conditions, e.g. wet site conditions following rain;
- b) Time lost due to industrial matters any other item not identified in time lost due to adverse weather conditions.

The Contractor must apply to the Superintendent for an extension of time within five (5) business days of the possible delay becoming evident.

The Contractor must make themselves aware of seasonal forecasts and historical weather conditions expected for the region and make allowance in their works program for normal wet weather.

It is expected that the Contractor will continually monitor forecasted weather conditions and make every effort to minimise those delays to the program. Due to the nature of this regional arrangement, it is expected that the Contractor will arrange to mobilise to another prepared site within the region, at no expense to the Principal. There is no obligation on the Principal to have a site prepared in advance of the agreed program. The Principal is not liable for any additional costs arising from extensions of time granted or additional mobilisations by the Contractor who wishes to maintain their continuity of work or should they require additional mobilisations to meet program milestones.

In determining a reasonable extension of time for an event causing a delay, the Superintendent shall have regard to whether the Contractor has taken all reasonable steps to preclude the occurrence of the cause and minimise the consequences of the delay.

26. Defects Liability Period

The Defects Liability Period is **12 months** and shall commence on the Date of Practical Completion.

As soon as possible after the Date of Practical Completion, the Contractor shall rectify any defects or omissions in work under the Contract existing at Practical Completion.

At any time prior to the 14th day after the expiration of the Defects Liability Period, the Superintendent may direct the Contractor to rectify any omission or defect in the work under the Contract existing at the Date of Practical Completion or which becomes apparent prior to the expiration of the Defects Liability Period. The direction shall identify the omission or defect and state a date by which the work of rectification shall commence. The separate Defects Liability Period shall commence on the date the Contractor completes the work of rectification.

It the work of rectification is not commenced or completed by the stated dates the Principal may have the work of rectification carried out at the Contractor's expense, but without prejudice to any other rights that the Principal may have against the Contractor with respect to such omission or defect and the cost of the work of rectification incurred by the Principal shall be a debt due from the Contractor.

It is necessary for the Contractor to carry out work of rectification, the Contractor shall do so at times and in a manner which causes as little inconvenience to the occupants or users of the works as is reasonably possible.

The Principal may inspect contract work during the Defects Liability Period and identify any defects in a condition report. The condition report shall detail the condition of the surface and the type of defect/s. The condition report will be sent to the Superintendent and the

Contractor, the Contractor shall within seven (7) business days of receipt of the condition report advise the Superintendent and Principal of how and when the defect shall be rectified.

The Contractor must repair all defects in the works, referrable to faulty workmanship, materials or designs, which emerge during the Defects Liability Period. The Contractor must perform that work to the standard specified by the Principal and to the satisfaction of the Superintendent.

27. Retention Monies

The Contractor will be required to provide retention monies to the value of five per cent (5%) of the Contract value, to be retained from each progress claim.

These retention monies will be released in two parts:

- 50% upon the Date of Practical Completion;
- The remaining 50%, at the expiration of the Defects Liability Period.

Retention monies will not be released whilst there are outstanding defects to be rectified.

28. Performance Bonds

To ensure adherence to the agreed works program, the Principal will require the Contractor to provide a performance bond for the duration of this Contract.

The performance bond is to the value of \$50,000.

The performance bonds shall be in the form of unconditional bank guarantees or similar instrument acceptable to the Principal. The performance bonds will be in addition to the retention monies and will be returned to the Contractor within 10 business days of the Date of Practical Completion subject to the Contractor having complied with its obligations under this Contract, and there is no rectification work outstanding.

29. Acceptance of Work

Acceptance of work performed on the day is subject to satisfactory provision of all quality assurance documentation.

The Principal may elect to accept work which does not comply with the Contract, whereupon there shall be a deemed variation.

30. Public Consultation

Public notification and consultation are critical for the Principal. The public consultation will be undertaken by the Principal. The Contractor will be required to provide the Principal with two (2) weeks' notice of its intention to commence site work. The Contractor will be required to provide the Principal with a minimum of three (3) business days' notice for any intended changes to the scheduled works program. The Contractor will provide the Principal with a contact name and mobile phone number. This Contractor representative will be available to address all queries that residents affected by any aspect of the work may have. These queries from residents may include, but not limited to, start and finish times or damage caused by the Contractor during the program.

31. Damage by Contractor

The Contractor shall immediately report to the Principal any damage caused to persons or property and/or if a member of the public makes a claim against the Contractor. The Contractor shall be responsible (at no cost to the Principal) for any rectification or compensation, of any damage caused by the Contractor's staff or agents of the Contractor or plant as a result of carrying out any of the scheduled works.

The Contractor shall indemnify the Principal against claims by any person against the Principal in respect of personal injury or death or loss of or damage to any property arising out of or as a consequence of the carrying out by the Contractor of the work under the Contract.

If the Contractor fails to comply with an obligation under this clause, the Principal may in addition to any other remedy perform the obligation on the Contractor's behalf and the cost incurred by the Principal shall be a debt to the Contractor to the Principal.

32. Timetable for Procurement

Issue Request for Tender	Friday , 26 th July 2024
Closing Time*	Friday, 4.00 pm 16 th August 2024

*Dates are subject to alteration by the Principal at its discretion.

Site Location:

Yapunyah Caravan Park Powell Street, Thargomindah Lot 505 SP134021

